
 

 

 
The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to consider some business in 
private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 
 

 

 
 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
BOARD 

 
 

Date: THURSDAY, 6 JULY 2017 at 2.00 pm 

 
Committee Room 1 
Civic Suite 
Lewisham Town Hall 
London SE6 4RU 
 
Enquiries to:    Stewart Snellgrove 
Telephone:       020 8314 9308 (direct line) 
 
MEMBERS 
 

 

Magna Aidoo Healthwatch Bromley & Lewisham  
Councillor Chris Best Community Services, London Borough of Lewisham L 
Aileen Buckton Directorate for Community Services, London Borough of 

Lewisham 
 

Sir Steve Bullock London Borough of Lewisham L 
Val Davison Lewisham and Greenwich NHS Trust  
Gwen Kennedy NHS England  
Tony Nickson Voluntary Action Lewisham  
Roger Paffard South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust  
Dr Simon Parton Lewisham Local Medical Committee  
Peter Ramrayka Voluntary and Community Sector  
Marc Rowland Lewisham Clinical Commissioning Group  
Dr Danny Ruta Public Health, London Borough of Lewisham  
Brendan Sarsfield Family Mosaic  
Sara Williams Directorate for Children & Young People, London Borough 

of Lewisham 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to 
consider some business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

  



 

 

 

 

The public are welcome to attend our committee meetings, however occasionally committees may have to 
consider some business in private.  Copies of reports can be made available in additional formats on request. 

 

 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS – PART 1 AGENDA  

 

Item 
No 

 Page 
No.s 

1.   Minutes of last meeting and matters arising 
 

1 - 6 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

7 - 9 

3.   Whole System Model of Care - Governance and Partnership 
Arrangements for CBC 
 

10 - 17 

4.   South East London Sustainability and Transformation Plan - Update 
 

18 - 27 

5.   Better Care Fund Planning - 2016/17 Progress Report 
 

28 - 37 

6.   Revising the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) Process in 
Lewisham 
 

38 - 49 

7.   Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme 
 

50 - 58 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



MINUTES OF THE  

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

Thursday 27 April 2017 at 2pm 

 

 

ATTENDANCE  

PRESENT: Mayor Sir Steve Bullock (Chair); Cllr Chris Best (Cabinet Member for 

Health, Wellbeing and Older People); Elizabeth Butler (Chair of Lewisham & 

Greenwich Healthcare NHS Trust); Dr Danny Ruta (Director of Public Health, LBL); 

Sara Williams (Executive Director for Children & Young People, LBL); Dr Simon 

Parton (Chair of Lewisham Local Medical Committee) and Peter Ramrayka 

(Voluntary and Community Sector Representative).  

IN ATTENDANCE: Charles Gostling (Clinical Director, Lewisham CCG); Charles 

Malcolm-Smith (Deputy Director, Strategy & Organisational Development, Lewisham 

CCG); Dee Carlin (Head of Joint Commissioning, LBL); Carmel Langstaff (Portfolio 

Manager, Whole System Model of Care); Bobbie Scott (Programme Support Officer, 

Lewisham CCG); Siva Chandrasekaran (Population Health and Wellbeing 

Intelligence Manager); Joanne Roberts (Development Support Officer, Voluntary 

Action Lewisham); and Paul Aladenika (Clerk to the Board). 

APOLOGIES: Dr Marc Rowland, Chair (Chair of Lewisham Clinical Commissioning 

Group and Vice-Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board); Aileen Buckton 

(Executive Director for Community Services, LBL); Magna Aidoo (Healthwatch 

Bromley and Lewisham); Gwen Kennedy (Interim Director of Nursing South London, 

NHS England); Tony Nickson (Director, Voluntary Action Lewisham); Roger Paffard 

(Chair, South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust) and Brendan Sarsfield 

(Family Mosaic). 

  

Welcome and Introductions  

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and invited Board members to 

introduce themselves. 

 

1. Minutes of the last meeting and matters arising  

1.1 The minutes of the last meeting were agreed as an accurate record, with no 

matters arising. 

  

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



2. Declarations of Interest  

2.1 Items 4 and 6 for Charles Gostling (Clinical Director, Lewisham CCG) and 

Charles Malcolm-Smith (Deputy Director, Strategy & Organisational 

Development, Lewisham CCG). 

  

3. Healthier Communities Select Committee Referral on Lewisham 

Pensioner’s Forum Report (12/01/17) 

3.1 The Chair introduced a referral report from the Healthier Communities Select 

Committee. This report informed the Health and Wellbeing Board of the views 

of the Healthier Communities Select Committee following evidence received 

from the Lewisham Pensioner’s Forum during the third evidence session of 

the committee’s review of health and adult social care integration on 12 

January 2017. 

3.2 Cathy Ashley and Judy Harrington of the Lewisham Pensioners’ Forum were 

invited, by the Chair, to address the Board. During their address, the 

representatives of the Lewisham Pensioners’ Forum: 

 raised concerns about the cost of implementation of adult social care and 

health integration; 

 noted that 'better care when you need it' is not a reality on the ground; 

 raised concerns about the resilience of the social care market; 

 noted that there is a need for resilient communities to absorb the gap in 

funding; 

 noted that it is only when services are needed that people are able to 

appreciate the impact of lost funding; and 

 asked that the Health & Wellbeing Board use its executive powers to 

consider the impact of spending cuts, on services, upon those who need 

them most. 

3.3 Responding, Cllr Chris Best noted that although the Council had been under 

pressure, it had taken active steps to make the best use of funding available 

to it. Cllr Best also gave example of services that had been safeguarded such 

as swimming. 

3.4 Responding, the Chair Sir Steve Bullock also stressed that the Council is 

taking steps to mitigate the impact of spending cuts on older people. 

3.5 Action: The Board agreed the referral recommendations and for the response 

to go back to the Healthier Communities Select Committee.  

  

4.  South East London Sustainability and Transformation Plan: Update 

4.1 Charles Malcolm-Smith (Deputy Director, Strategy & Organisational 

Development, Lewisham CCG) provided the Board with an update on the 

Page 2



NHS South East London Sustainability and Transformation Plan, including the 

proposals for elective orthopaedic service. 

4.2 A summary of key points from the briefing are as follows: 

 A leadership team of four individuals has been established to oversee the 

STP. In addition, governance arrangements have been revised through 

the development of a Strategic Planning Group involving all local NHS 

organisations, local government and patient representatives.  

 Public consultation into proposals to develop elective orthopaedic centres 

has been postponed until spring 2017. 

 The intention is to further develop proposals that would enable the public 

to consider the pros and cons of a two site as well as three site 

consolidation options. 

 Further engagement  will be undertaken during 2017, with local people 

and interest groups, to enable them to find out more about ‘Our Healthier 

South East London’s’ plans. 

4.3 Responding to briefing, the Board noted that: 

 The governance arrangements for the South East London partnership 

need to be worked on. 

 Council leaders are committed to making the partnership work, however 

partners are not yet convinced that the finance for the strategic plan have 

been satisfactorily addressed. 

 There is still some confusion about the role and purpose of STPs, given 

that they are non-statutory entities. 

4.4 Action: The Board noted the contents of the report. 

 

5.  Better Care Fund Planning 2017-19 

5.1 Bobbie Scott (Programme Support Officer, Lewisham CCG) provided 

members of the Board with an update on Better Care Fund (BCF) planning for 

2017-18 and 2018-19. 

5.2 The Policy Framework for the implementation of the BCF in 2017-18 and 

2018-19 was published on 31 March 2017. The main change to the 

Framework from last year is the inclusion of a new grant for adult social care 

announced in the 2015 Spending Review and 2017 Spring Budget as the 

‘Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF)’. 

5.3 The iBCF will be paid directly to local authorities and must be used to meet 

adult social care needs, reduce NHS pressures and to stimulate the local 

social care provider market. 

5.4 The number of national conditions in the framework has been reduced from 

eight in 2016-17 to four in 2017-19. 

Page 3



5.5 The detailed planning requirements and allocations that underpin the 

framework are still in the process of being finalised. As in 2016/17 the BCF 

Plan will be developed by Lewisham Council and Lewisham CCG. 

5.6 The timetable for assurance and approval of BCF plans will be published in 

the Planning Guidance. The delay in publication is likely to result in a tight 

timetable for submission of our local BCF Plan. It is possible that approval and 

sign-off of the Plan will fall before the next meeting of the Health and 

Wellbeing Board in July. 

5.7 In the meantime, a review of the 2016/17 BCF plan is taking place and a first 

draft of the 2017-18 and 2018-19 plan is being prepared addressing the key 

areas as set out in the Policy Framework. 

5.8 In response the Board noted the following: 

 The Board should receive assurances that initiatives are working and that 

updates to this effect should be provided. 

 That an additional meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board (before 

July) be scheduled to sign off the Better Care Fund Plan, if this cannot be 

done at the July meeting. 

5.9 Action: The Board noted the contents of the report. An additional meeting of 

the Board was agreed if required. 

 

6.  Whole System Model of Care – Neighbourhood Care Networks 

6.1 Carmel Langstaff (Portfolio Manager, Whole System Model of Care) provided 

the Board with an update on the development of Neighbourhood Care 

Networks (NCN) in Lewisham. 

6.2 Lewisham’s Neighbourhood Care Networks bring together local care 

networks, delivered by Lewisham’s Health and Care Partners (LHCP) and the 

networks of voluntary and community sector organisations within the same 

model.  

6.3 LHCP are developing a local care network in each neighbourhood to 

transform the way in which community based care is delivered. By operating 

at this smaller scale, local care networks can more easily develop local 

connections between services, co-ordinate care and strengthen relationships 

between professionals. 

6.4 The neighbourhood care network model is also being applied to existing 

services that work with children and young people and being further 

developed through the re-commissioning and re-design of children’s centres 

and health visitor services. 

6.5 The following were highlighted as next steps for the whole system model of 

care approach: 

Page 4



 strengthening the network of professionals delivering care and support; 

 strengthening the network of voluntary and community sectors 

organisations; and 

 strengthening the relationships between the statutory and voluntary 

sectors. 

6.6 The LHCP Executive Board is supported by a number of steering groups, 

including a Communications and Engagement Steering Group. This group is 

accountable for developing and undertaking effective system wide 

communication and engagement activity. 

6.7 Responding, the Board asked to know more about how the Hubs will be 

tweaked to reflect the needs of each area.  Carmel noted that the Hubs will be 

more than a ‘physical space’ and will instead be geared towards promoting 

community resilience. Carmel added that the use of digital technologies will 

be an important part of this. 

6.8 Action: The recommendations of the report were agreed. 

 

7.  Performance Dashboard Update – Exceptions Reporting 

7.1 Dr Danny Ruta (Director of Public Health, LBL) provided members of the 

Board with an update on performance against its agreed priorities within the 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the performance indicators for the Better 

Care Fund. 

7.2 A summary of key points from the briefing are as follows: 

 Premature deaths from cardio vascular disease has dropped (although not 

able to explain why) this could be part of a national trend. 

 Childhood obesity rates have come down; noted that a lot of work has 

gone into tackling obesity. 

 Breast feeding and MMR rates have increased; noted that a lot of work 

has gone into improve performance across both of these measures. 

 Premature deaths from cancer have increased. Noted that rising rates of 

adult obesity could be a factor in this, as this contributes to cancer. 

 Flu vaccinations have dropped. 

 Cervical screening rates have dropped. 

7.3 Following the presentation a wider discussion ensued about funding for 

transformation in order to deliver improved health and well-being. The Board 

also discussed how systems can be used more effectively to manage the 

population’s health and identify those who might be vulnerable. 

7.4 Action: The Board noted the contents of the report. 

 

 

Page 5



8.  Lewisham CCG Annual Report 2016-17 Update 

8.1 Charles Malcolm-Smith (Deputy Director, Strategy & Organisational 

Development, Lewisham CCG) provided members of the Board with an 

update on the CCG’s annual report and accounts for 2016/17.  

8.2 A requirement of the Health and Social Care Act 2012 is that the report 

includes the CCG’s contribution to local plans and strategies and that the 

Board is consulted in this regard in the preparation of the annual report. 

8.3 The Board was invited to note the timescales that the CCG is working to. 

8.4 Action: The Board noted the contents of the report. 

 

9.  Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme 

9.1 Paul Aladenika (Clerk to the Board) presented the Board with a draft work 

programme for discussion and approval. 

9.2 In response to a question raised by the Chair about the rationale for the Joint 

Strategic Needs Assessment Update, planned for July, Danny Ruta stated 

that he was looking to facilitate intelligent debate, at the Board, on the way 

forward. 

9.3 Liz Butler asked for an item on One Public Estates to be included on the 

agenda for the July 2017 meeting. 

9.4 Action: The Board noted the contents of the report. As it was her last meeting, 

the Chair thanked Liz Butler for all her contributions to the Board and wished 

her well in her future endeavours. 

 

The meeting ended at 15:30 hours. 

   

Page 6



Health and Wellbeing Board 

Title Declarations of interest 

Contributor Chief Executive – London Borough of Lewisham Item 2 

Class Part 1 (open) 6 July 2017 

 
Declaration of interests 
 
Members are asked to declare any personal interest they have in any item on the agenda. 
 
1 Personal interests 
 

There are three types of personal interest referred to in the Council’s Member Code 
of Conduct:-  

 
(1)  Disclosable pecuniary interests 
(2)  Other registerable interests 
(3)  Non-registerable interests 

 
2 Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined by regulation as:- 
 
(a) Employment, trade, profession or vocation of a relevant person* for profit or gain 
 
(b) Sponsorship –payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than by the 

Council) within the 12 months prior to giving notice for inclusion in the register in 
respect of expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member or towards 
your election expenses (including payment or financial benefit  from a Trade Union). 

 
(c)  Undischarged contracts between a relevant person* (or a firm in which they are a 

partner or a body corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of which 
they have a beneficial interest) and the Council for goods, services or works. 

 
(d)  Beneficial interests in land in the borough. 
 
(e)  Licence to occupy land in the borough for one month or more. 
 
(f)   Corporate tenancies – any tenancy, where to the member’s knowledge, the Council 

is landlord and the tenant is a firm in which the relevant person* is a partner, a body 
corporate in which they are a director, or in the securities of which they have a 
beneficial interest.   

 
(g)   Beneficial interest in securities of a body where:- 
 

(a)  that body to the member’s knowledge has a place of business or land in the 
borough; and  

 
 (b)  either 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 1/100 of the 
total issued share capital of that body; or 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 (ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant person* 
has a beneficial interest exceeds 1/100 of the total issued share capital of 
that class. 

 
*A relevant person is the member, their spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom 
they live as spouse or civil partner.  

 
(3)  Other registerable interests 

 
The Lewisham Member Code of Conduct requires members also to register the 
following interests:- 

 
(a) Membership or position of control or management in a body to which you 

were appointed or nominated by the Council 
 

(b) Any body exercising functions of a public nature or directed to charitable 
purposes, or whose principal purposes include the influence of public opinion 
or policy, including any political party 

 
(c) Any person from whom you have received a gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £25 
 
(4) Non registerable interests 

 
Occasions may arise when a matter under consideration would or would be likely to 
affect the wellbeing of a member, their family, friend or close associate more than it 
would affect the wellbeing of those in the local area generally, but which is not 
required to be registered in the Register of Members’ Interests (for example a 
matter concerning the closure of a school at which a Member’s child attends).  

 
(5)  Declaration and Impact of interest on members’ participation 

 
 (a)  Where a member has any registerable interest in a matter and they are 

present at a meeting at which that matter is to be discussed, they must 
declare the nature of the interest at the earliest opportunity and in any event 
before the matter is considered. The declaration will be recorded in the 
minutes of the meeting. If the matter is a disclosable pecuniary interest the 
member must take not part in consideration of the matter and withdraw from 
the room before it is considered. They must not seek improperly to influence 
the decision in any way. Failure to declare such an interest which has not 
already been entered in the Register of Members’ Interests, or 
participation where such an interest exists, is liable to prosecution and 
on conviction carries a fine of up to £5000  
 

 (b)  Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable 
pecuniary interest they must still declare the nature of the interest to the 
meeting at the earliest opportunity and in any event before the matter is 
considered, but they may stay in the room, participate in consideration of the 
matter and vote on it unless paragraph (c) below applies. 
 

Page 8



(c) Where a member has a registerable interest which falls short of a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, the member must consider whether a reasonable member 
of the public in possession of the facts would think that their interest is so 
significant that it would be likely to impair the member’s judgement of the 
public interest. If so, the member must withdraw and take no part in 
consideration of the matter nor seek to influence the outcome improperly. 

 
 (d)  If a non-registerable interest arises which affects the wellbeing of a member, 

their, family, friend or close associate more than it would affect those in the 
local area generally, then the provisions relating to the declarations of 
interest and withdrawal apply as if it were a registerable interest.   

 
(e) Decisions relating to declarations of interests are for the member’s personal 

judgement, though in cases of doubt they may wish to seek the advice of the 
Monitoring Officer. 

 
(6)   Sensitive information  

 
There are special provisions relating to sensitive interests. These are interests the 
disclosure of which would be likely to expose the member to risk of violence or 
intimidation where the Monitoring Officer has agreed that such interest need not be 
registered. Members with such an interest are referred to the Code and advised to 
seek advice from the Monitoring Officer in advance. 

  
(7) Exempt categories 
 

There are exemptions to these provisions allowing members to participate in 
decisions notwithstanding interests that would otherwise prevent them doing so. 
These include:- 

 
(a) Housing – holding a tenancy or lease with the Council unless the matter 

relates to your particular tenancy or lease; (subject to arrears exception) 
(b)  School meals, school transport and travelling expenses; if you are a parent 

or guardian of a child in full time education, or a school governor unless the 
matter relates particularly to the school your child attends or of which you are 
a governor;  

(c)   Statutory sick pay; if you are in receipt 
(d)   Allowances, payment or indemnity for members  
(e)  Ceremonial honours for members 
(f)   Setting Council Tax or precept (subject to arrears exception) 

 
 

Page 9



 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

Report Title   Strengthening  Lewisham’s Governance and Partnership  

  Arrangements  for the Delivery of Community Based Care  

 
Contributors Lewisham Health and Care Partners/Whole 

System Model of Care Programme Lead 

Item No. 3 

Class Part 1 Date: 6 July 2017 

Strategic 

Context 

Please see body of report 

 

1.   Purpose  

1.1 This report sets out Lewisham Health and Care Partners’ planned next steps to strengthen 

the governance and partnership arrangements for the development and delivery of 

Community Based Care as part of their proposed direction of travel towards a population 

based accountable care system for Lewisham.  An accountable care system is a system which 

commissions and delivers health and care, working across organisations and in partnership, 

with the potential to share governance and accountability and to pool budgets against 

strategically commissioned outcomes.   The report seeks the Board’s support for this 

approach.   

 

2.   Recommendation 

 

2.1 Board members are asked: 

 to support and endorse the intended direction of travel to strengthen the governance 

and partnership arrangements for the delivery of community based care as part of an 

accountable care system;  

 to note that further work is being undertaken to identify the legal frameworks or 

agreements that could be used to formalise any such governance and partnership 

arrangements and that a further report on this would be presented to the Health and 

Wellbeing Board and through the governance of each sovereign organisation;  

 to note the interim steps that are being taken to adopt stronger and more collaborative 

working within existing governance and partnership arrangements.   

 

3.  Strategic Context  

 

3.1 The activity of the Health and Wellbeing Board is focused on delivering the strategic vision 

for Lewisham as established in Shaping our Future – Lewisham’s Sustainable Community 

Strategy, and by Lewisham’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 

3.2 The work of the Board directly contributes to Shaping our Future’s priority outcome that 

communities in Lewisham should be Healthy, active and enjoyable - where people can actively 

participate in maintaining and improving their health and wellbeing. 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



 

3.3  The Health and Social Care Act 2012 placed a duty on Health and Wellbeing Boards to 

prepare and publish joint health and wellbeing strategies to meet the needs identified in their 

joint strategic needs assessments.  Lewisham’s Health and Wellbeing Strategy was published 

in 2013 and refreshed in 2016.  

 

3.4 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 also requires Health and Wellbeing Boards to 

encourage persons who arrange for the provision of any health or social services in the area 

to work in an integrated manner, for the purpose of advancing the health and wellbeing of the 

area. 

 

3.5  The NHS Five Year Forward View was published on 23 October 2014 and sets out a new 

shared vision for the future of the NHS based around new models of care.   

 

3.6  Planning guidance was published on 22 December 2015 which set out the requirement 

for the NHS to produce five year Sustainability and Transformation Plans (STP).  These are 

place based, whole system plans driving the Five Year Forward View locally.  The Next Steps 

on the NHS Five Year Forward View highlights the need to move to further integration across 

health and care, through Sustainability and Transformation Partnerships and, for some, 

through the creation of accountable care systems.  

 

4. Background 

 

4.1 For many years, health and care partners across Lewisham have worked together to plan 

and deliver care in a more accessible, integrated and sustainable way.  Supporting the Health 

and Wellbeing Board, Lewisham’s Health and Care Partners Executive Board (LHCPEB) 

currently provides the joint strategic direction for this work where it requires a whole system 

approach. The framework provided by the South East London STP Our Healthier South East 

London has informed the development of local transformation and integration plans.  

 

4.2 A key area of focus for LHCPEB has been on the improvement, development and delivery 

of Community Based Care.  Partners want the support and care that is provided in the 

community, outside a traditional hospital setting, to be more accessible, proactive, 

preventative and coordinated.  By working together on the development and delivery of 

Community Based Care, partners aim to maintain and improve people’s health and wellbeing, 

increase their independence and resilience, reduce the risk of admission to hospital and 

facilitate the timely discharge of patients. 

 

4.3 Although examples of good practice already exist across the borough, the Lewisham 

Health and Care Partners Executive Board agreed that they should look at ways in which the 

governance and partnership arrangements around the development and delivery of 

community based care could be strengthened to accelerate progress, achieve faster decision 

making and clarify accountabilities. This has included exploring the development of a locally 

based accountable care system.    

 

4.4 To support the LHCP in this work, the Board engaged the support of external consultants 

to help them review Lewisham’s current governance and arrangements, to explore good 

Page 11



 

practice adopted established elsewhere in the country, and to present a report to the Board 

recommending possible arrangements to achieve the desired outcomes in Lewisham.   

 

4.5 The report made a number of recommendations for the LHCP to consider.  The report 

recommended establishing a system oversight board, a strategic commissioning function and 

an alliance of providers.   

 

5.  Rationale  

 

5.1 Although partners across the system currently seek to carry out commissioning and 

provider functions in partnership, they recognise that something different is needed to secure 

collective leadership and to enable partners to work together.   They recognise that to address 

local health and care, equality, quality and efficiency challenges more effectively, 

organisations and their partners should explore and work towards an accountable care 

system. These place based health and care systems work across organisations and 

partnerships with pooled budgets, shared governance and accountability.   

 

5.2  As a first step, LHCP believe that the strengthening of governance and partnership 

arrangements for community based care will secure benefits across the system.  These 

include delivering an agreed partnership vision for community based care, providing 

clarification of the roles and responsibilities between commissioners and providers in the 

development and delivery of community based care, ensuring there is joint agreement on the 

intermediate and long term health and care outcomes based on the population health needs 

assessment, aligning priority areas for action and resources, and fully engaging with the 

system wide workforce. Where challenges and obstacles arise that would delay or disrupt 

plans, the new arrangements are expected to support partners across the system to reach a 

speedier resolution.   

 

5.3 The government has previously stated that it wants to see the integration of health and 

social care, in every area of England, by 2020, supported by the Better Care Fund.  The 

proposed direction of travel outlined in this report also aligns with the expectations set out in 

the NHS Five Year Forward View which called for better integration across the health and care 

system and for an acceleration of local integration and partnership arrangements.   The need 

to bring organisations more closely together and address the fragmentation and duplication 

across the system is further reiterated in Our Healthier South East London, the Sustainability 

and Transformation Plan (STP) for South East London. 

 

6.  The Proposed Governance and Partnership Arrangements for Community Based 

Care 

 

6.1 The external consultants presented a conceptual illustration for how the governance and 

partnership arrangements for community based care could be arranged. This is shown at 

Annex A.  

6.2 The proposed arrangements illustrate the strong relationship between three key elements 

which are necessary for the successful delivery of community base care:  collective decision 

making and oversight; accountability for the public value; and accountability for quality and for 

delivery with the right capacity and resources.   

Page 12



 

6.3 If the Health and Wellbeing Board supports this direction of travel, the next steps that 

health and care partners propose to take towards the establishment of these arrangements 

are set out in more detail in the following sections. 

Next Steps  

7.  Establishing a system oversight board 

7.1 Partners want to explore the establishment of a system oversight board to make shared 

decisions and be held accountable for the delivery of sustainable, high quality and outcome 

based population health and care in Lewisham.  They want to explore how such a board could 

best be formed to achieve a clear mandate to identify and agree deliverables, realise benefits, 

share risks and set clear outcomes within a specified funding envelope.  Such a board could 

act as the executive arm of the Health and Wellbeing Board.   

Proposed next steps 

7.2 The current LHCP Executive Board will act as a shadow system oversight board continuing 

to provide strategic oversight and adopting, within existing governance arrangements,  the full 

roles and responsibilities of a system oversight board and testing out how effectively those 

roles are being executed.  Members will work collaboratively to develop and oversee a joint 

vision and plan for the development and delivery of Community Based Care. In taking this 

work forward, the Board want to be held jointly accountable to the Health and Wellbeing Board 

and sovereign bodies for agreed key milestones and key deliverables.  This will seek to 

establish value to the system as a whole and focus on health and care outcomes, quality and 

efficiency, and the greater co-ordination and integration of health and care for the local 

population, rather than individual organisational benefit.   The LHCP will focus on the key 

enablers and infrastructure that needs to be in place to support an accountable care system, 

such as the development of population health IT systems, maximising the use of the health 

and care estate, undertaking financial modelling, workforce development and improving 

communication.  As part of this the Board will also support the development of the 

Neighbourhood Hubs.  

7.3 Whilst adopting shadow arrangements, members will be asked to review regularly their 

performance and to judge whether the shadow board has secured improvements in the way 

they want and has addressed the current challenges in terms of decision-making and 

accountability. In parallel further work to explore the legal frameworks and statutory 

arrangements which could be used should sovereign organisations want to formalise such 

arrangements will be undertaken and presented through each organisation’s governance so 

that each can consider the specific implications for their own organisation.  

7.4 At this time, however, there would be no change to the current governance and 

accountability of existing sovereign bodies and each partner would need to ensure that the 

appropriate approval for commissioning or provider plans is secured from their own 

organisation.    

 

Page 13



 

8.  Establishing a Strategic Commissioning Function 

8.1 Partners want to strengthen the integrated strategic commissioning function between the 

CCG and the Council to enable health and care commissioners to work collaboratively, 

possibly under a single arrangement. Commissioning partners want to ensure commissioners 

across the system work together more closely, share data and information more effectively 

and maximize opportunities for joint planning and aligning outcomes.   

8.2 By working in an integrated way, commissioners would be expected to agree collectively 

the commissioning intentions for community based care and to define the intermediate health 

and care system goals and population outcomes.    

Proposed next steps 

8.3   The LHCP Executive Board has asked commissioners to consider what further steps 

could be taken to improve collaborative and joint working across the CCG and the Council to 

deliver strategic commissioning.  

9.  Establishing an Alliance of Providers 

9.1 Provider partners want to strengthen the collaboration between them.   One way of doing 

so is by establishing an alliance of provider organisations to deliver community based care.  

Such an alliance would enable providers to respond collectively to commissioner contracts 

and for providers to hold one another to account.   An alliance would manage population health 

risks and develop collaborative operating and management systems.   Coming together as 

equals, providers would take joint responsibility and accountability for the delivery of specified 

outcomes.  Providers could agree shared objectives/ targets and identify those areas where 

they could collaborate and pool budgets.    

9.2 As with the strategic commissioning functions, it was felt that an alliance should enable 

providers to address issues across the full health and care system rather than addressing 

individual parts.   Any alliance model should enable providers to explore solutions that focus 

on the improvement of population and performance outcomes and on the integration of care. 

Proposed Next Steps  

 

9.3 Providers are currently working together to explore the development of an alliance, with 

key voluntary sector organisations, for the delivery of community based and co-ordinated 

care.  A group has been established to share knowledge and experience to inform the 

development of future alliance arrangement for CBC.   Within this wider CBC provider 

alliance work, providers are also testing out this approach for mental health provision.  This 

proposed provider alliance approach reflects the interrelated nature of current provision, the 

desire to deliver holistic and person centred care, and the need to ensure that the impact of 

increased activity or provision by one provider does not adversely affect another.  

 

 

Page 14



 

 

10.  Seeking formal agreement on joint governance and partnership arrangements  

10.1 Although this report proposes a way forward and new ways of working, before the specific 

changes to existing governance arrangements or accountability can be proposed or 

implemented, more detail on the legal frameworks and statutory arrangements (eg section 75) 

to deliver stronger partnership arrangements is required.   While this work is undertaken, 

partners are of the view that much can be done within current governance arrangements to 

reshape existing groups and model the new ways of working.   

10.2 No changes to formal governance and partnership arrangements can be made without 

the full agreement from each sovereign organisation, particularly if delegated authority is being 

proposed.   Further work is needed to see how any proposals in relation to new governance 

or partnership arrangements would affect each existing organisation’s governance 

arrangements. Once this detail is available, further consultation will take place with existing 

governance groups and committees on any changes proposed and final proposals presented 

to the Health and Wellbeing Board, Healthier Communities Select Committee and to each 

partners’ governance arrangements for approval. 

11. Financial Implications  

 

11.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. Any proposed activity or 

commitments arising from activity to support the development of the proposed governance 

and partnership arrangements for the delivery of community based care will need to be agreed 

by the delivery organisations concerned and be subject to confirmation of resources.  The 

funding available in future years will of course need to take account of any required savings 

or any other reduction in overall budgets and national NHS planning guidance. 

 

12. Legal implications  

 

12.1 As part of their statutory functions, members are required to encourage persons who 

arrange for the provision of any health or social services in the area to work in an integrated 

manner for the purpose of advancing the health and wellbeing of the area, and to encourage 

persons who arrange for the provision of health-related services in its area to work closely with 

the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 

12.2 Where there is an integration of services and/or joint funding, then this is dealt with under 

an agreement under Section 75 NHS Act 2006 which sets out the governance arrangements 

for the delivery of services, and where relevant any delegation of functions from one party to 

another and the respective budget contributions of the local authority and the CCG in relation 

to the services. 

 

12.3 Any additional legal implications arising from the establishment of more formal 

governance and partnership arrangements will be fully detailed in future reports and 

agreement sought from each sovereign body before any formal change is implemented. 

 

13. Crime and Disorder Implications 

Page 15



 

 

13.1 There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report or its 

recommendations. 

 

14. Equalities Implications  

 

14.1 Although there are no specific equalities implications arising from this report, the 

development of any new health and care governance and partnership arrangements will 

continue to focus on improving health and care outcomes and reducing inequalities across the 

borough.  

 

15. Environmental Implications 

 

15.1 There are no specific environmental implications arising from this report or its   

recommendations. 

 

16. Conclusion 

 

16.1 Members are invited to support the proposed direction of travel and planned next steps 

as set out in this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

If you have problems opening this document, please contact: 

stewart.snellgrove@lewisham.gov.uk (Phone: 020 8314 9308) or if there are any queries on 

the content of this report please contact sarah.wainer@nhs.net (Phone: 020 3049 1880). 

Page 16

mailto:stewart.snellgrove@lewisham.gov.uk
mailto:sarah.wainer@nhs.net


1

Integrated strategic 

commissioning function:

Accountability for the public 

value

System Oversight Board

Shared health and care system 

wide leadership

Collective decision-making and 

oversight

Alliance of providers 

collaboratively delivering 

CBC:

Accountability for quality 

and delivery of the right 

balance of capacity and 

resources to deliver the 

public value

Health & 

Well-Being 

Board

Governance of 

partners 

sovereign  orgs

The public

Authorising 

environment

2

1

3

4

Contractual relationship

Select 

Committee

Regulators

5

P
age 17



 1 

 

 
 
1. Purpose 
 
This report provides members of the Health and Wellbeing Board with an update 
on the NHS South East London Sustainability and Transformation Plan.  The 
report is for information. 
 
2. Recommendation 
 

Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are recommended to: 
 

 Note the progress of these programmes of work. 
 
3. Policy Context 
 
Planning guidance was published on 22 December 2015 which set out the 
requirement for the NHS to produce five year Sustainability and Transformation 
Plans (STP).  These are place based, whole system plans driving the Five Year 
Forward View. 
 
The Board received a previous report at its meeting in March 2017. 
 
4. Summary of report 
 
Appendix 1 provides an update on current areas of development for the south 
east London STP, including a review of the phases of development of the Our 
Healthier South East London (OHSEL) programme. 
 

4.1 STP Delivery Plans 
 

The STP is submitting delivery plans for 10 national programmes: 

 Urgent and emergency care 

 Cancer 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Report Title 
 

South East London Sustainability and Transformation Plan: 
Update 

Contributors 
 

Our Healthier South East London 
Programme Team 
 
Martin Wilkinson, Chief Officer, Lewisham 
CCG 
 

Item No. 4 

Class 
 

Part 1 Date: 6 July 2017 

Strategic 
Context 

The report provides an update on strategic planning processes 
for South East London  
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



 2 

 Primary care 

 Mental health 

 Transforming care 

 Diabetes 

 Maternity 

 Elective care 

 Prevention 

 Finance 

4.2 Financial strategy 
 
Work is also being undertaken to review and improve financial modelling that 
will ensure alignment with local authority positions, better risk assessment, and 
revised delivery plans. 

4.3 Review of Specialist Services 
 
This review is being carried out with NHS England and with south west London 
to look at acute specialised services across south London, the majority of which 
are provided by three providers (the Guy’s and St Thomas’s, King’s College 
Hospital, and St George’s University Hospital NHS Foundation Trusts).  The 
review plan includes paediatric, neurosciences, cancer, and cardiac and renal 
specialised services. 

4.4 Elective Orthopaedic Services 
 
Work is also being undertaken by COs and CCG chairs to consider the next 
steps for the provision for elective orthopaedic inpatient care in south east 
London.  
 
We have continued to support providers to develop a proposal for a three site 
model and to further understand the financial and other impacts of going 
forward with either the three- or the two-site model. This work is still underway.  
 
At the same time, we continue to focus on developing a network approach 
across south east London in line with recommendations by Professor Tim 
Briggs, Getting it right first time, to improve clinical quality and efficiency for 
orthopaedic patients. 
 
There are a number of issues that need to be addressed to make sure that 
everyone in south east London has access to the best services, and in a way 
that is sustainable for the NHS in the future: 
 

 We have some excellent services but the standard of care isn't the same 
for every patient 

 Surgery is cancelled too often and some patients wait too long for their 
procedure, which affects their experience 

 Demand is increasing so we need to find a way to care for a lot more 
people in the future than we do today 

 The money available to the NHS is limited so we must find a cost 
effective way of providing these services 

 

Page 19



 3 

 
4.5 Public engagement 
 
As part of a wider programme of engagement on the Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan (STP), we are holding a public event in the Civic Suite on 
Thursday 29 June (from 5pm to 8pm).  The purpose is to raise awareness about 
the STP, demystify some of the common perceptions about it and explain its 
history and journey to date. It will also provide an opportunity to seek feedback 
on key areas under development. There will be market stalls and a Q&A 
session.   

 
5. Financial implications 

 
The strategic plans reflects the financial plan and savings required to deliver 
a financially balanced position over the five year period. 

 
6. Legal implications 

 
Members of the Board are reminded that under Section 195 Health and Social 
Care Act 2012, health and wellbeing boards are under a duty to encourage 
integrated working between the persons who arrange for health and social 
care services in the area.  This is recognised in the strategic priorities 
identified in the development process. 

 
7. Crime and Disorder Implications 

 
There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report. 

 
8. Equalities Implications 

 
In order to ensure that the strategy is informed by the diverse population in 
south east London and to enable full understanding of  the potential impact 
on communities with protected characteristics (as well as complying with the 
Equalities act 2010), carers and, the socially and economically deprived, 
equalities analyses will be conducted throughout the programme.  

 
9. Environmental Implications 

 
There are no environmental implications arising from this report. 

 
Background Documents 
 
Delivering the Forward View: NHS planning guidance 2016/17 – 2020/21 can be 
found at www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/futurenhs/deliver-forward-view/  
 
Further information on the Our Healthier South East London programme can be 
found at www.ourhealthiersel.nhs.uk  
 
If there are any queries on this report please contact Charles Malcolm-Smith, 
Deputy Director (Strategy & OD), Lewisham CCG, e-mail charles.malcolm-
smith@nhs.net  

Page 20

http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/futurenhs/deliver-forward-view/
http://www.ourhealthiersel.nhs.uk/
mailto:charles.malcolm-smith@nhs.net
mailto:charles.malcolm-smith@nhs.net


June 2017

P
age 21



2013: SEL CCGs 

establish 5 year 

commissioning 

plan.

Establish 5 clinical 

workstreams:

- Community 

Based care

- U&EC

- Planned care 

(orthopaedics)

- Maternity

- Children

Consolidated 

strategy published  

July 2015

December 2015: 

National 

requirement for 

STPs to be formed 

as whole system 

planning groups to 

implement 3 gaps 

in 5YFV.

What are the 3-5 

things that need to 

be done to “shift 

the dial”

Stage 1: OHSEL Pre STP Stage 2: December 2015 Stage 3: October 2016 Stage 4: Dec 16 – to date Stage 5: Post Election: Manifestos

Acceleration of 

annual planning 

cycle

Two-year contracts

Reconciliation of 

operating plans 

with STP

Publication of Next 

Steps on FYFV
- Identification of 

national clinical 

priorities

- 10 point financial 

recovery plan

- ACS and ACO 

development

Changing 

expectations on 

STPs

Submission of 

plans: SEL submits 

5 pillar plan:

- CBC

- Clinical 

Transformation

- Specialist

- Provider 

Productivity

- Working 

Differently

£900m 5 year 

challenge

We will back…… Sustainability and 

Transformation Plans, providing they 

are clinically led and locally supported. 

If the current legislative landscape is 

either slowing implementation or 

preventing clear national or local 

accountability, we will consult and 

make the necessary legislative changes. 

This includes the NHS’s own internal 

market, which can fail to act in the 

interests of patients and creates costly 

bureaucracy. So we will review the 

operation of the internal market

Labour will halt and review the NHS 

‘Sustainability and Transformation 

Plans’, which are looking at closing 

health services across England, and ask 

local people to participate in the 

redrawing of plans with a focus on 

patient need rather than available 

finances. We will create a new quality, 

safety and excellence regulator – to be 

called ‘NHS Excellence’. 

P
age 22



National programme baselines and trajectories and the 10 point efficiency plan:

STPs to share their resource plans for each programme

3

STPs are Required to submit delivery plans for key areas by end of June 2017

STP can submit an overarching STP delivery plan

National Programmes and Enablers

Question

10 point eff plan

Detailed STP delivery plans (milestones, critical paths, dependencies etc)  - should cover how the 

STP will deliver the national programmes and enablers

Are the plans robust and credible? 

Will the plans meet the asks of the 

national programmes and the 10 point 

efficiency plan (using one version of 

data)?

Can the plans show that there are 

enablers and resources in place to 

deliver?

Detail

1

2

3

Delivery plan 1 Delivery plan 2 Delivery plan 3 Delivery plan 4 Delivery plan 5

Resource plan 1 Resource plan 2 Resource plan 3 Resource plan 4 Resource plan 5

Primary Care
U&EC 

(incl 111, CCTH)

Cancer Mental Health

Transforming 

Care*
Efficiency 10 point 

plan
Elective CareDiabetes

Prevention

Maternity

Finance

National priorities Additional national programmes

STP Action

Optional overarching plan

Complete the detailed  STP delivery 

plans

(i.e. the next iteration of the plans 

last submitted in Oct 16)

Complete the nationally mandated 

template to confirm baselines, 

targets and trajectories for delivery 

and the 10 point efficiency plan

Complete accompanying resource 

plans

*Enablers (workforce, 

digital, estates) are not 

included in this ask at the 

current time

Transforming 

Care*
*Note: Transforming Care is not a national priority programme but is a priority programme for London so is likely to adopt the same principles and timelines

P
age 23



Current Activity What we need to do Where we need to end up

OHSEL taking on a financial co-ordination role 

since the autumn operating planning process, to 

ensure the STP and operating plans are aligned.

Understand from March Five Year Forward View document on future 

expectations, and as far as possible, help to shape them.

An STP function with the skills and resources to 

add value to organisational effort.

Review of OHSEL finance model to ensure:

- Initiatives that have a financial benefit have 

the right programme management 

arrangements (leadership, accountability, 

resources)and our confidence in delivery of 

benefits is increased.

- Alignment with local government financial 

challenges and new funding announced in 

budget.

- Specialist challenge is understood and joint 

working with NHSE produces a series of 

executable action.

Improve the model:

- Review of productivity and clinical workstreams by to address:

- Level of ambition of initiatives

- Leadership, governance and resources of 

workstream

- Governance and financial strategy workstream (i.e. risk share 

and provider federation model)

- Programme team investment

- Productivity programme director and COO

- Creation of workforce, digital and estates teams

- Expansion of clinical programme team

- Local authority engagement to determine what action should 

be taken:

- At borough level

- At 6 borough level

- Agree with NHSE appropriate sign off and delivery mechanism 

is for renal and cardiac services improvement.

Revised delivery plans reflecting findings of 

reviews

Revised governance, leadership and resources as 

appropriate

Consider joint provider committee of some type 

for decision making and allocation of risk/ 

benefits

An expanded and fully recruited OHSEL team

Agreed position with local government reflecting 

shared priorities

An agreed position and delivery plan with NHSE 

that improves quality and value in specialised 

services in scope.

Understanding of alignment of STP, operating 

plans and organisational control totals.  Some 

organisations have greater challenges than 

others.

Risk assessment and alignment process identifying positions on CIP, 

QIPP, STP initiatives and reconciliation to control total.

Three step approach:

1. Reduce contract misalignment

2. Ensure organisational CIP and QIPP is maximised

3. Ensure final control totals are established and make sure 

collaborative opportunities are maximised.

Ensure organisations needing support obtain it.

Consolidated financial risk position which 

identifies which parts of the system are at most 

risk, what the appropriate ask is of organisations, 

the extent to which STP initiatives can help 

individual and overall positions.

Identification of the remaining gap for 17/18  and 

to 20/21 and what the appropriate action and 

support is.

P
age 24



5

4

We have established a group with NHSE and SWL to look at the 

specialised services across south London

Transformation of specialised services needs to be undertaken 

on a large population basis. Across London, service review work 

has taken place to varying degrees (eg Cancer and cardiac) but 

little focus so far on South London. 

Three providers provide the majority of acute specialised 

services in South London so they will form the focus of this 

report. These providers are geographically extremely close to 

one another; the furthest distance between them is just 7 miles. 

We know there is significant duplication of services.

We also know there is significant growth pressure on services.

Guy’s and St Thomas’ NHS Foundation Trust (GSTT)

King’s College Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (KCH)

St George’s University Hospital NHS Foundation Trust (SGH)

P
age 25



6

4

P
age 26



7Draft in progress |

What Next? The 5YFV Delivery Plan

Three national improvement priorities:

• A&E performance

• GP services and primary care

• Cancer and mental health

Finance: 

• 10 point efficiency plan

“going into 2017/18 it is critical that those geographies that are significantly out of balance now confront the 

difficult choices they have to take. Where necessary this may mean explicitly scaling back spending on locally 

unaffordable services, so that they go in to the next two years with a viable and balanced income and 

expenditure plan, delivering locally the Government’s Mandate requirement for the NHS to balance its books.”

Sustainability and Transformation Partnerships:

• Some will become Accountable Care Systems
“They are systems in which NHS organisations (both commissioners and providers), often in 

partnership with local authorities, choose to take on clear collective responsibility for resources 

and population health”

• A few STPs will develop ACOs

• STPs will be different but have some common characteristics

• A single over-sight framework based on results

P
age 27



 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

Report Title Better Care Fund 

Contributors Whole System Model of Care Programme Lead Item No. 5 

Class Part 1 Date: 6 July 2017 

Strategic 
Context 

Please see body of report 

 

1. Purpose 
 

1.1 This report provides Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board with a 
report on the 2016/17 Better Care Fund (BCF). 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are asked to: 

 
 Note the report on the 2016/17 Better Care Fund. 

 
 Note the continued delay in the publication of the Better Care Fund 

Planning Guidance; 
 

 Agree that, if required, an additional meeting of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board be arranged as soon as the date for submission of the 2017-19 plan 
is known so that it can be signed off by the Health and Wellbeing Board.  
 

3. Strategic Context 
 
3.1 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 requires Health and Wellbeing Boards to 

encourage persons who arrange for the provision of any health or social 
services in the area to work in an integrated manner, for the purpose of 
advancing the health and wellbeing of the area. 

 
3.2 The Care Act 2014 amended the NHS Act 2006 to provide the legislative basis 

for the Better Care Fund.  It allows for the mandate to NHS England to include 
specific requirements relating to the establishment and use of an integration 
fund.   

 
3.3 The Government’s Spending Review in November 2015 announced a 

requirement for all areas to have a plan for integration between social care and 
health by 2017, to be implemented by 2020.   

 
3.4 The Better Care Fund (BCF) is a joint health and social care integration fund 

managed by Lewisham Council and Lewisham Clinical Commissioning Group. 
The strategic framework is set out in the national BCF policy framework and 
planning guidance.  

 
4. 2016/17 Progress 

Page 28

Agenda Item 5



 
4.1 During 2016/17, the BCF supported the development of Prevention and Early 

Intervention tools, the delivery of Community Based Care including the 
development of Neighbourhood Community Teams and the Neighbourhood Care 
Networks and the redesign of services to deliver Enhanced Care and Support. 

 
4.2 Prevention & Early Intervention 

 
4.2.1 Preventative interventions are critical to managing the increasing demand in 

health and social care services, reducing the overall burden of disease in the 
population and have the potential to underpin financial sustainability.  
 

4.2.2 Through the Better Care Fund we have funded a range of services to make it 
easier for everyone, including professionals, to access the right information and 
services: 
 

 The ‘Single Point of Access’ for Health and Social Care provides one number that 
acts as a gateway for contacts to district nursing and social work services.  During 
2016/17 significant work was undertaken to improve demand management and 
reduce the level of abandoned calls. 

 The development of a social care and health digital directory provides information, 
advice and signposting to more effectively manage demand, prevent the 
escalation of need and encourage behaviour change.     

 The development of two online self-assessment forms.  The wellbeing self-
assessment is for people who think they may need care or extra help.  The short 
questionnaire assists people to identify what support they may need, whether 
they are likely to be eligible for adult social care support and provides tailored 
information to help people to self-manage their own health and care.   There is 
also a self-assessment for carers, which helps carers to identify their support 
needs. 
 

4.2.3 Through the Better Care Fund we have supported people to live in their own 
homes safely and independently by funding: 

 

 SAIL (Safe and Independent Living) Connections, which is a quick and easy way 
for vulnerable older people (60 plus) and those supporting them to access a broad 
range of coordinated support and/or information to help keep people safe and 
independent in their own home.  SAIL was launched in February 2017 and had 
received 97 referrals by the end of Q4 2016/17. 

 Community Connections, a preventative community development programme 
aimed at supporting vulnerable adults over 18 who are resident in Lewisham and 
who may benefit from services to improve their social integration, health and 
wellbeing and also reduce isolation.  Over 800 individuals in 2016/17 have been 
supported through person centred plans with 86% reporting an improvement in 
their overall wellbeing. 

 Community Falls Service, to proactively manage those at risk of falling as well as 
providing a range of physical activity interventions and care coordination to 
reduce repeat falls.    

 Improved use of community equipment, through the launch of the Transforming 
Community Equipment Services online learning tool to help staff order equipment 
more efficiently and minimise waste.   

 
4.2.4 Through the Better Care Fund we have funded a range of information, advice and 

care to support people with long term conditions to make it easier for people to 
self-manage their own health and wellbeing:  

Page 29



 

 Primary care, through the Lewisham GP Federation (One Health Lewisham), was 
commissioned to deliver the Co-ordinated Care Service 2016-18.  The 
overarching aims of the Coordinated Care Service are to deliver an enhanced 
level of primary care in the community and reduce avoidable emergency activity.  
The service provides an enhanced level of coordinated care with a focus on long 
term conditions (LTCs) and the vulnerable and has delivered the following 
outcomes:      

a) Closing the gap between recorded versus expected prevalence for LTCs.  
Across the borough LTC registers have increased by more than the average 
annual growth figures.  Since 1 April 2016 diabetes registers have increased 
by 593 patients, the chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) register 
by 268 patients and the hypertension register by 1179.   

b) Smoking cessation for newly diagnosed COPD patients.  20% of all patients 
diagnosed with COPD since April 2016 have stopped smoking. 

c) Proactive management of patients at risk of emergency activity.  The 
Federation has started to proactively manage those patients who frequently 
attend A&E and have established a cross-federation team to review and 
coordinate care for these patients.   

d) GP Practices are also participating in patient centred multi-disciplinary team 
working with neighbourhood community teams.  

 A two year pilot to deliver a tailored approach to self-management education 
activities for people with long term conditions.  The pilot offers a ‘menu’ of 
evidence based flexible self-management activities tailored to an individual’s 
health and social care complexity as well as their individual learning needs. The 
pilot addresses a major gap for those residents that have long term conditions 
who face barriers to accessing mainstream structured self-management 
education as well as building an evidence base for a future integrated approach 
to self-care and self-management in Lewisham. 

 
4.3 Neighbourhood Care Networks and Community Based Care 

 
4.3.1 Our work on Community Based Care and Neighbourhood Care Networks is being 

informed by the plans and priorities of the south east London Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan (SEL STP), developed in collaboration with south east 
London’s commissioners and providers. 

 
4.3.2 LHCP have organised a range of health and care services on a neighbourhood 

footprint to create four ‘local care networks’ based around GP registered lists in 
the following geographical areas: (1) North Lewisham (2) Central Lewisham (3) 
South East Lewisham and (4) South West Lewisham . 

 
4.3.3 A neighbourhood care network is the way in which people and organisations, both 

statutory and voluntary, build connections and links between them so that people 
receive the right advice, support and care to improve and maintain their health 
and wellbeing. 

 
4.3.4 In Lewisham we are focusing on building connections across our four 

neighbourhood areas, enabling all those working to maintain and improve 
people’s health and wellbeing to connect up more easily and deliver care in a 
joined up way.   

 
4.3.5 Networks are also being developed through multi-disciplinary meetings which 

bring health and care staff together to support people with complex care needs.  
All GP practices hold regular multi-disciplinary meetings (MDMs) to agree how 

Page 30



best to co-ordinate care for people with complex health and care needs.  Practice 
based MDMs provide a mechanism to enhance and improve inter professional 
working to maintain people in the community and prevent unnecessary admission 
to hospital or long term care.  A Standard Operating Procedure for practice based 
MDMs has been developed which sets out the approach to MDMs in Lewisham.  

 
4.3.6 Multidisciplinary Neighbourhood Community Teams (NCT) cover each of the 

neighbourhoods bringing together district nurses, social workers, occupational 
therapists and physiotherapists.  These virtual teams are aligned to GP Practices 
and community mental health services.  This has enabled more holistic care to 
be provided as well as greater sharing of information and collaboration. During 
2016/17 workshops to improve joint working and joint training sessions have 
taken place.  Work to co-locate the NCTs is on-going.   

 
4.3.7 Neighbourhood Co-ordinators (one in each neighbourhood) have been in post 

since November 2015.  The Co-ordinators support multi-disciplinary working, 
liaising between professionals within the NCT and with services outside it. 
Funded by the BCF, the Neighbourhood Co-ordinators work across health and 
social care to improve multi-disciplinary working for those people with complex 
health and social care needs. The team facilitates effective liaison between formal 
and informal health and care providers across Lewisham.  Feedback from all 
professionals has been very positive.  The Co-ordinators received 1254 ‘referrals’ 
(requests for support) in 2016-17.  These ‘referrals’ range from straightforward 
signposting or information chasing to supporting the co-ordination of case 
conferences for more complex cases.  The Co-ordinators have improved 
communication and information sharing between professionals, reduced time 
spent by professionals chasing information and enabled more effective 
signposting to support person centred care.  

 
4.3.8 To further strengthen networking across the neighbourhoods, four 

Neighbourhood Community Development Partnerships have been established.  
These neighbourhood partnerships bring together voluntary and community 
sector organisations and groups in that area to support community development, 
to work with statutory partners in the area and to build stronger, healthier 
communities. 

 
4.3.9 Lewisham is one of five devolution pilots across London.  The devolution asks 

focus on estates and workforce, specifically the freedoms and flexibilities needed 
within the workforce to accelerate the development and transformation of 
Community Based Care.  The devolution pilot aims to develop a new approach 
and model for those health and care professionals who visit and support people 
in their own homes, informed by the Buurtzorg model developed in the 
Netherlands.  Lewisham will explore the development of similar joint health and 
care roles and responsibilities which support integrated and holistic delivery.   

 
4.3.10 Through the BCF in 2016/17 we have also funded a range of community health 

services to enable the management of people with more complex health and 
social care needs out of hospital.  These include: 

 

 The Care Home Intervention Team (CHIT) which supports the mental health 
needs of patients in care homes and day services in Lewisham.  It provides 
a community in-reach service for older adults who display behavioural and 
psychological symptoms of dementia.  The team works on a one-to-one basis 
with patients as well as with organisations to develop best practice.  Over 

Page 31



2016/17 the Team has reduced the prescribing of anti-psychotic medication, 
avoided placement breakdowns and emergency admissions to hospital. 

 The Home Treatment Team (HTT) operates 7 days a week and provides a 
rapid response and assessment for a mental health crisis.  The Team also 
supports early facilitated discharge for patients by offering care and 
treatment at home following an inpatient admission.  In 2016/17 the HTT 
supported 609 people, 92% did not require a subsequent admission to 
hospital.  The HTT also supported 263 people for early discharge.       

 The Enablement Services deliver enablement and rehabilitations services to 
people identified as needing support to prevent admission to hospital or to 
facilitate discharge from an acute bed.  The numbers of people being 
supported through the service has increased from 100 to 125 at any one time 
through better scheduling, flexibility of staff and expanding trusted assessor 
roles.   In 2015/16, 76.6% of people supported by the Enablement service 
needed no further intervention at the end of the period.   

 
4.4 Enhanced Care and Support 

 
4.4.1 Lewisham’s non-elective pathway is characterised, in terms of patient volume, by 

a significant number of people attending the emergency department, who could 
have been appropriately treated elsewhere, and a smaller number of patients with 
more complex needs who could, with the appropriate interventions, avoid a 
hospital admission. 

 
4.4.2 In response the increase in non-elective activity in 2015/16 and the refresh of One 

Version of the Truth (OVT, a diagnostic of what was happening along the urgent 
and emergency care pathway), Lewisham & Greenwich NHS Trust, Lewisham 
CCG and the London Borough of Lewisham worked in partnership to support the 
redesign and development of the Emergency Department Discharge Team, 
Community Discharge and Support Team and the Rapid Response Team. 

 
4.4.3 Due to the challenges facing the entire system including invest to save and the 

South East London Sustainability and Transformation Plan requirements for 
Enhanced Care and Support, the need to reduce avoidable admissions, support 
discharge and improve flows to reduce length of stay, further work needed to be 
done to refine the activity modelling and proposed impact.  Therefore the 
redesigned services have been implemented later than originally planned and the 
expected benefits were not realised in 2016/17.   

 
4.4.4 The remodelled Emergency Department Discharge Team is a dedicated 7 day a 

week, 8am-8pm service and identifies patients presenting at the Emergency 
department who are at risk of an admission to hospital or those patients who 
require rehabilitation and links them to other services.  The phased 
commencement of the service began in December 2016.   

 
4.4.5 The remodelled Community Discharge and Support Team has been enhanced to 

incorporate the discharge to assess pathway to help facilitate patient flows in 
Lewisham Hospital and facilitate the early discharge of patients.  The phased 
commencement of the service began in March 2017.      

 
4.4.6 The remodelled Rapid Response Service will provide a dedicated 7 day week 

8am-8pm service to patients in the community at risk of an emergency admission.  
Currently there are two Rapid Response Services, one delivered by Lewisham 
and Greenwich Trust as part of a wider admissions avoidance programme and 

Page 32



one developed to support winter capacity to receive referrals from GPs and Care 
Homes.  The proposal is to bring these two providers together to deliver a single 
Rapid Response Team.     

 
4.4.7 The Integrated Primary and Urgent Care (IPUC) Model is still being developed.  

The borough wide GP Federation commenced delivery of the seven days per 
week, 8am till 8pm GP access component of the IPUC service on 1st April 2017.  
The Primary Care Assessment pilot (at the front door of Urgent Care Centre) 
component of the IPUC commenced on 3rd October 2016.   

 
4.4.8 The BCF funds Social Care Staff to be available 7 days a week, 8am-8pm in the 

Emergency Department at Lewisham Hospital and in the Enablement Services in 
the Community.  Over the winter period (November 2016 – March 2017) staff 
have been available 7 days per week to undertake complex assessments and 
liaise with families to bring forward discharges.   

 
4.4.9 The redesigned Continuing Healthcare (CHC) pathway brings together health and 

social care resources for CHC assessments and reviews, to create a single CHC 
team.  This new team has focused on providing a single point of access to 
improve processing times to reduce the time spent in hospital for patients who 
are medically fit for discharge.  The team has been place since May 2016, all 
checklists go through the team and all fast track patients have been seen within 
24 hours.  The referral to assessment times have reduced to the statutory 28 days 
maximum and are being managed within an average 10 days at Lewisham 
Hospital and the percentage of deferred decisions has been reduced from 20% 
to 10%.   
 

4.4.10 Extra Care Provision has been provided at Conrad Court comprising of 78 units.  
Over the last year the service has supported 8 people who have left care homes 
and 3 people who left hospital who may otherwise have gone into residential or 
nursing homes.  There are also high levels of satisfaction of people using the 
scheme. 

 
4.5 Enablers 

 
4.5.1 ‘Digital’ technology has a significant role to play in the sustainability and 

transformation of the local health and care system.  The BCF has been used to 
fund the development of technology that will change the way care is delivered to 
achieve improved and consistent patient care, better prevention and allow more 
care to be delivered in the community.   

 
4.5.2 Connect Care is a local electronic record which allows patient information from 

separate records to be viewed quickly and safely by front line professionals, such 
as GPs, hospital staff, district nurses and social workers, directly involved in 
patient care.  Currently the portal receives feeds from GP practices in Bexley, 
Greenwich and Lewisham, out of hours services based at the Queen Elizabeth 
Hospital and University Hospital Lewisham, Oxleas Mental Health Trust and 
Lewisham Community Services. 

 
4.5.3 Assessments have taken place to identify the development or refurbishment 

needs in relation to estates to support new ways of working and shared use.  
 

5. 2016/17 Performance against the National Metrics  
 

Page 33



5.1 During 2016/17 targets were achieved for non-elective admissions and 
reablement; targets were not achieved for Admissions to Residential Care and 
delayed transfers of care (DToC) although performance in the latter improved 
over the course of the year. 

 
5.2 In 2016/17 non-elective admissions were 4.6% below plan for the year. 

 
5.3 In 2015/16 Lewisham had one of the highest performances for reablement at 

98.1% of people remaining at home 91 days after discharge from hospital.  In 
2016/17, 92.8% of people remained at home 91 days post discharge.  Whilst this 
is a slight decrease in last year’s performance, performance remains higher than 
the target set.       

 
5.4 The number of people feeling supported with their long term condition has 

increased from 59.1% in 2014/15 to 60.1% in 2015/16 and we are on track to 
meet the target set for 2016/17 (data due to be published in July 2017). 

 
5.5 The 2016/17 target for admissions to residential care was not met.  Although more 

people have been admitted to care in 2016/17 than in 2015/16 they have shorter 
lengths of stay due to higher acuity.  In year we continued to see an increase in 
elderly mentally ill placements in both nursing and residential care.  We are 
working with families and Extra Care providers to explore more complex 
packages of care at home and this has started to show signs of success.   

 
5.6 The 2016/17 target for delayed transfers of care was not met.  However significant 

improvement was made throughout the year.   Over 2015/16 there was a 
significant increase in the number of days delayed reported to LB Lewisham by 
South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation Trust (SLaM) and this continued 
into 2016/17.   

 
5.7 Lewisham’s Joint Commissioners have been and continue to work with Social 

Care and SLaM to fully understand and address the reasons for the delays.  The 
interventions to support the reduction in delayed transfers of care include system 
weekly surge calls, the appointment of a Head of Borough for inpatient services, 
a continued focus on length of stay and agreement to a refined clinical and 
operational process for delayed transfers of care. 

 
5.8 In addition, local work to support Winter Resilience at Lewisham and Greenwich 

Trust was initiated to support and improve flow for complex patient discharges.  
This reduced hospital delays for people ready for discharge, avoiding delayed 
transfers of care and reducing excess bed days.  The recovery programme 
included; the appointment of a Nurse Flow Manager to co-ordinate discharges 
across the system for University Lewisham Hospital and increased complex care 
brokers.  The local Discharge Policy has also been reviewed.  

 
5.9 This system approach has had a significant impact on the complex patient “ready 

for discharge” list.  The number of days delayed has continued to decline from Q2 
2016/17.  However we recognise that there is further work to do with both the 
health and care economies to sustain this. 

 
6. 2016/17 Finance 

 
6.1 The total BCF pooled budget for 2016/17 was £21.946m.  The fund was 

fully spent with underspend arising from slippage on new projects 

Page 34



reallocated to other priority areas by the S75 Agreement Management 
Group. 

 
7. BCF Plan 2017-19  

 
7.1 The Policy Framework for the implementation of the BCF in 2017-18 and 2018-

19 was published on 31 March 2017.  The policy framework sets out the 
Government’s vision that by 2020 health and social care should be integrated 
across the country in order to reduce health inequalities, support sustainable 
systems and better co-ordinated care. 

 
7.2 At the time of writing the detailed planning requirements and allocations that 

underpin the framework were in the process of being finalised.  
 
7.3 As in 2016/17 the BCF Plan is being developed by Lewisham Council and 

Lewisham CCG.   
 

7.4 The BCF Plan 2017-18 and 2018-19 will be an evolution of the 2016/17 Plan and 
will continue to fund activity in the following areas:    
 

 Prevention and Early Intervention  

 Primary Care including supporting extended access to GP services. 

 Community based care and the development of neighbourhood care 
networks 

 Enhanced Care and Support to reduce avoidable admissions to hospital and 
to facilitate timely discharge from hospital. 

 Estates and IMT  
 
7.5 The 2017 Budget announced an additional £2 billion to support social care in 

England.  This money is included in the IBCF grant to local authorities and will be 
included in local BCF pooled funding and plans.  The 2017-19 BCF Plan will also 
set out how this money will be spent ensuring that the grant conditions are met.   

 
8. BCF Submission and Assurance Timetable 
 
8.1 The timetable for assurance and approval of BCF plans will be published in the 

Planning Guidance.  
 

8.2 The delay in the publication of the Planning Guidance is likely to result in a tight 
timetable for submission of our local BCF Plan and it is possible that approval 
and sign off of the plan will fall in the period between this meeting of the Health 
and Wellbeing Board and the next.  Members are asked therefore to agree that, 
if required, an additional meeting of the Health and Wellbeing Board be arranged.  
However if the timetable allows the plan will be presented for sign off at the 
November meeting.  

 
 

8.3 A first draft of the 2017-18 and 2018-19 plan is being prepared addressing the 
key areas as set out Policy Framework.   
 

9. Governance 

 
9.1 The BCF arrangements are underpinned by pooled funding arrangements with 

a section 75 agreement. (A section 75 agreement is an agreement made under 

Page 35



section 75 of the National Health Services Act 2006 between a local authority 
and an NHS body in England. It can include arrangements for pooling 
resources and delegating certain NHS and local authority health related 
functions to the other partner). 

 
9.2 The Section 75 Agreement Management Group (Adults) oversees the 2016/17 

BCF Plan and will also oversee the 2017-2019 BCF Plan and expenditure.   
 
10. Financial Implications 

 
10.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. Monitoring of the 

activity supported by Better Care Funding continues to be undertaken by the 
Section 75 Agreement Management Group (Adults).  

 
11. Legal implications 
 
11.1 As part of their statutory functions, Members are required to encourage persons 

who arrange for the provision of any health or social services in the area to 
work in an integrated manner, for the purpose of advancing the health and 
wellbeing of the area, and to encourage persons who arrange for the provision 
of health-related services in its area to work closely with the Health and 
Wellbeing Board. 

 
11.2 Where there is an integration of services and/or joint funding, then this is 

dealt with under an agreement under Section 75 NHS Act 2006 which sets 
out the governance arrangements for the delivery of services, and where 
relevant any delegation of functions from one party to another and the respective 
budget contributions of the local authority and the CCG in relation to the 
services. 

 
12. Crime and Disorder Implications 
 
12.1 There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report or 

its recommendations. 
 
13. Equalities Implications 
 
13.1 Although there are no specific equalities implications arising from this report, 

Equalities Analysis will be undertaken where necessary to inform the BCF 
plan. 

 
14. Environmental Implications 

 
14.1 There are no specific environmental implications arising from this report or its 

recommendations. 
 
15. Conclusion 
 
15.1 This information report provides an update on the Better Care Fund and invites 

members to agree the recommendations set out in paragraph 2.1. 
 
15.2 If you have problems opening or printing any embedded links in this document, 

please contact stewart.snellgrove@lewisham.gov.uk (Phone: 020 8314 
9308) 

Page 36

mailto:stewart.snellgrove@lewisham.gov.uk


 
15.3 If there are any queries on this report please contact sarah.wainer@nhs.net 
 (Phone: 020 3049 1880) 

 
 

Page 37

mailto:sarah.wainer@nhs.net


1 

 

 

 

1. Purpose  
 

This report presents members of the Health and Wellbeing Board with new proposed 
JSNA process for Lewisham. 

 

2. Recommendations 
 

Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are recommended to approve the 
proposed JSNA process and agree who will represent the Board on the proposed 
JSNA Steering Group. 

 

3. Strategic Context 
 
3.1 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 placed a duty on local authorities and their 

partner Clinical Commissioning Groups to prepare and publish Joint Health and Wellbeing 

Strategies to meet needs identified in their Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (JSNAs). Since 

their inception, JSNAs have aimed to evolve from a static report to a dynamic strategic 

partnership process, which identifies and highlights population need and how best those 

needs can be met within existing resources. The aim of this paper, which has been prepared 

by the Lewisham Public Health Team (see attached), is to propose a revised JSNA process 

that will: 

1. Achieve wider stakeholder engagement; 

2. Provide a more strategic overview of needs; 

3. Take account of and help determine local priorities; 

4. Be more transparent and accountable to the Health & Wellbeing Board; 

5. Provide effective monitoring and efficient management of available JSNA resources. 

 
 

4. Background 
 
4.1 Every local authority has its own way of undertaking its JSNA. In Lewisham, an 

independent JSNA website with comprehensive information on demography, social 

and environmental factors has been provided for several years. The website also gives 

access to a comprehensive list of in-depth needs assessments on specific topics, 

some of which have subsequently been refreshed, and others that are now several 

years old. These in-depth assessments vary in scope and may cover specific diseases, 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 
 

Report Title 
 

Revising the Lewisham JSNA Process 

Contributors 
 

Director of Public Health Item 
No. 

6 

Class 
 

Part 1 (Open) Date:  06 July 2017 

Strategic 
Context  

Please see body of report 
 

Page 38

Agenda Item 6



2 

 

conditions, or problems, a geographical area, a segment of the population, or a 

combination of all these. 

 
 
4.2 Historically, there was no systematic approach to identifying and prioritising topics for 

JSNA until 2012/13. However, needs assessments have always been carried out in a 

structured way, and to an agreed standard. In 2014/15 the Health & Wellbeing Board 

agreed a revised JSNA process that delegated responsibility to a Health and Wellbeing 

Strategy Implementation Group to prioritise and sign off completed JSNAs topics 

before final approval by the Board. 

 
4.3 The historic JSNA process has not been without its limitations. JSNA engagement 

events had poor participation rates and attempts to invite suggestions and support for 

JSNA topics had a poor response. The historic process has not facilitated prioritization 

of JSNA topics based on local, changing strategic priorities to improve health and 

wellbeing outcomes for the borough. Furthermore, the health and wellbeing strategy 

implémentation group has not met for over a year, and health & wellbeing board 

meetings now only take place three times a year, with a very busy agenda. Finally, 

there is no robust mechanism or process in place to regularly refresh at least a core of 

key intelligence on the population, and to disseminate new JSNA findings and 

recommendations to the widest constituency of partners.  

Hence the need to refresh the existing process and implement a new system that, due 

to resource constraints, can be automated wherever possible, but which will still be 

able to promote wider stakeholder engagement in both the selection and conduct of 

JSNA topic assessments, be more transparent, accountable, and which will also 

ensure that the JSNA process itself can be effectively monitored and efficiently 

managed.  

.   
 

 5. Proposals for a revised Lewisham JSNA process 
 
5.1 It is proposed to establish a JSNA steering group accountable to the Health & 

Wellbeing Board, and to implement a new JSNA process with the following elements: 
 

 A process for undertaking an overall ‘macro’ level JSNA assessment to provide 
a strategic level ‘Picture of Lewisham’, which would be updated annually; 

 

 A 6 stage process for undertaking new JSNA topic assessments, which 
includes topic selection, prioritisation, production and dissemination of topics; 

 A process for refreshing out of date JSNA topics 
 
 

6. Financial implications   
 
 There are no direct financial implications; however, constituent member organisations 

of the Health & Wellbeing Board will need to ensure that, whenever they nominate a 
specific JSNA topic for assessment, that appropriate resources are committed to 
support the Lewisham Public Health Team. The financial implications of any service 
changes proposed as part of individual Assessments will be considered as the 
Assessments are carried out. 

 

Page 39



3 

 

7. Legal implications  
 

The Health and Social Care Act 2012 placed a duty on local authorities and their 
partner clinical commissioning groups to prepare and publish joint health and 
wellbeing strategies to meet needs identified in their joint strategic needs 
assessments (JSNAs). 
 

8. Crime and Disorder Implications 
 
There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report or its 
recommendations 

 

9. Equalities Implications  
 

There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report or its 
recommendations, however the completion of specific JSNA topics will highlight 
where inequalities exist.  

 

10. Environmental Implications 
 
There are no specific environmental implications arising from this report or its 
recommendations. 

 

11. Summary and Conclusion 
 

The above outlines a revised JSNA process for Lewisham. 
 
If you have any difficulty in opening the links above or those within the body of the report, 
please contact Stewart Snellgrove (Stewart.Snellgrove@lewisham.gov.uk; 020 8314 9996), 
who will assist. 
 
If there are any queries on this report please contact Dr Danny Ruta, Director of Public 
Health, Community Services Directorate, Lewisham Council, on 020 8314 8637 or by email 
danny.ruta@lewisham.gov.uk 
 

Page 40

mailto:danny.ruta@lewisham.gov.uk


 

 

REVISING LEWISHAM’S JSNA 
PROCESS  
By Public Health Team 

 
  

JUNE 5, 2017 
LONDON BOROUGH OF LEWISHAM 

Page 41



The JSNA Process 2017/18                                                            

 

Public Health Team | 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

AIM 2 

BACKGROUND 2 

CURRENT SCENARIO 2 

THE PROPOSED PROCESS FOR UNDERTAKING A 'MACRO' JSNA 'PICTURE OF LEWISHAM' 

ASSESSMENT 4 

THE PROPOSED PROCESS FOR UNDERTAKING A NEW JSNA TOPIC ASSESSMENT 4 

THE PROCESS FOR REFRESHING JSNA TOPICS 5 

APPENDIX A: JSNA PROCESS 6 

APPENDIX B: JSNA TOPIC SUGGESTION FORM 7 

APPENDIX C: JSNA TEMPLATE 8 

 

  

Page 42



The JSNA Process 2017/18                                                            

 

Public Health Team | 2 

 

Aim 
The aim of this paper is to review the existing JSNA process in order to implement a refreshed process 

that will: 

1. Achieve wider stakeholder engagement; 

2. Provide a more strategic overview of needs; 

3. Take account of and help determine local priorities; 

4. Be more transparent and accountable to the Health & Wellbeing Board; 

5. Provide effective monitoring and efficient management of available JSNA resources. 

Background 
The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment is commonly known as the ‘JSNA’.  It is not a document or single 

'product', but a continuing process of strategic assessment of population and service needs that helps 

policy makers, commissioners and service providers make better decisions to improve health and 

wellbeing and reduce health inequalities. 

The production of a JSNA became a statutory duty on PCTs and upper tier local authorities in 2007.  In 

addition, the Health and Social Care Act 2012 placed a new statutory obligation on Clinical 

Commissioning Groups, Local authorities and NHS England to jointly produce and commission the 

JSNA. Findings and recommendations from the JSNAs should feed the local health and wellbeing 

strategy and CCG commissioning cycle and indeed determine local priorities and action. 

Every local authority has its own way of undertaking its JSNA. In Lewisham, an independent JSNA 

website with comprehensive information on demography, social and environmental factors has been 

provided for several years. The website also gives access to a comprehensive list of in-depth needs 

assessments on specific topics, some of which have subsequently been refreshed, and others that are 

now several years old. These in-depth assessments vary in scope and may cover specific diseases, 

conditions, or problems, a geographical area, a segment of the population, or a combination of all 

these. 

Historically, there was no systematic approach to identifying and prioritising topics for JSNA until 

2012/13. However, needs assessments have always been carried out in a structured way, and to an 

agreed standard? In 2014/15 the Health & Wellbeing Board agreed a revised JSNA process that 

delegated responsibility to a Health and Wellbeing Strategy Implementation Group to prioritise and 

sign off completed JSNAs topics before final approval by the Board. 

Current Scenario 
The historic JSNA process is not without its limitations. Firstly, JSNA engagement events had poor 

participation rates and attempts to invite suggestions and support for JSNA topics had a poor 

response. For example in 2015, the public health team only received 5 responses. This has meant that 

the opportunity to assess the needs of the population has been restricted due to lack of stakeholder 

engagement. 

Page 43



The JSNA Process 2017/18                                                            

 

Public Health Team | 3 

Secondly, even this small number of JSNA topics struggled to take off due to ressource limitations. 

Thirdly, the prioritisation of JSNA topics and commitment of resources has been on a first come - first 

serve basis, or when there is a pressing need to commission or decommission a service or meet a 

statutory obligation to provide a needs assessment for an inspection.  The process has not facilitated 

prioritization of JSNA topics based on local, changing strategic priorities to improve health and 

wellbeing outcomes of the community. 

Furthermore, the health and wellbeing strategy implémentation group has not met for over a year, 

and health & wellbeing board meetings now only take place three times a year, with a very busy 

agenda.  

Finally, there is no robust mechanism or process in place to regularly refresh at least a core of key 

intelligence on the population, and to disseminate new JSNA findings and recommendations to the 

widest constituency of partners.  

Hence the need to refresh the existing process and implement a new system that, due to resource 

constraints, can be automated wherever possible, promote wider stakeholder engagement in both 

the selection and conduct of JSNA topic assessments, be more transparent, accountable and where 

the JSNA process itself can be effectively monitored and efficiently managed.  

While reviewing the existing process, further operational questions were raised: 

• How many new JSNA topics and refreshes can be done in a year? 

• How often does a JSNA topic need to be refreshed? 

• How in-depth a JSNA topic or a refresh should be, and how long it should take to complete? 

Learning from experiences shared by analysts from other boroughs in South London and from our 

local public health team, an individual JSNA topic assessment can take between 2-6 months based on 

the topic, level of in-depth assessment required and availability of resources. Some boroughs have a 

chapter based approach which they update on an annual basis where they agree set chapters through 

a JSNA steering group i.e Kingston, Merton.  Some boroughs use surveys, prioritisation matrix and 

stakeholder engagement events to choose their topics and deliver their JSNAs i.e. Greenwich, 

Warwick, Portsmouth and Wolverhampton.  Based on this information, it is likely that no more than 

2-3 needs assessments could be undertaken at any one time, and probably not more than 4-5 new 

JSNA topics completed per year, with a maximum duration of 6 months from approval to sign off for 

an individual JSNA topic.   

In relation to the question of refreshing out of date JSNA topics, based on the team’s past experience 

and conversations with other borough analysts, a refresh can take between 1 - 2 months depending 

on the criteria for refresh. In some cases, this can generate a whole new JSNA topic assessment. 

Statutory needs assessments like the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment are done every 3 years 

following NHS England guidelines. Based on resource (staff, data and evidence) availability and 

strategic requirement, it is likely that only 3 or 4 refreshes could be undertaken a year. 

Page 44



The JSNA Process 2017/18                                                            

 

Public Health Team | 4 

The Proposed Process for Undertaking a 'Macro' JSNA 'Picture of 

Lewisham' Assessment 
 

It is proposed that, in addition to specific, topic based JSNA assessments (described below), an overall 
'Macro' level JSNA assessment will be undertaken and refreshed annually to provide a strategic level 
'Picture of Lewisham'. This will describe the population of Lewisham in terms of the key health and 
socio-demographic characteristics, including mortality, morbidity, ethnicity and inequalities. It will be 
accessible in a variety of formats for ease of use, including infographics and downloadable excel 
spreadsheets. The processes for updating the data will be automated wherever possible and refreshed 
as soon as the latest data become available at source. 

The Proposed Process for Undertaking a New JSNA Topic Assessment 
As discussed above, there is a need to create two parallel processes; one for the generation of New 

JSNA topic assessments, and the other for refreshes of out of date JSNA topic assessments. A 6-stage 

process is proposed for new JSNA topic assessments: 

1. Topic Identification – This is the initial stage where individuals (from any sector of the 

community) or partner organizations  are invited to nominate topics for assessment. They will 

do this by completing and submitting an online form, clearly explaining the topic of interest, 

reason for their choice and the strategic context. They will also be required to indicate the 

level of resource and support they are prepared to contribute to the assessment. There will 

be a simple registration process which will facilitate monitoring and feedback throughout the 

process. In this initial phase, a newly constituted JSNA steering group, formed by, and 

reporting to, the Health and Wellbeing Board, will be responsible for making sure all relevant 

partners, including the public, are aware of the registration process and the key deadlines for 

topic prioritisation decisions (see below).  A quarterly update of the JSNA topic requests will 

be sent to the JSNA steering group. Those who have registered and submitted a topic will be 

able to track the progress of their submission and any decisions made. 

2. Prioritisation and Approval – The JSNA steering group will be responsible for the prioritisation 

and approval of the JSNA topics submitted. The steering group will also be able to respond to 

strategic need by nominating topics itself. An annual timetable will be agreed that is in line 

with local authority and CCG commissioning cycles, and all dates for submissions, 

prioritisation meetings and decisions will be published on the JSNA website. Nominated topics 

will be reviewed and prioritized against a prioritisation scoring matrix (Appendix A) and ranked 

appropriately.  If the JSNA Steering group needs to gather more information they can contact 

the  person who submitted the survey. The JSNA Steering group will also assess the available 

resources and required skill mix before approval. If a JSNA topic has been approved, it will 

move on to the next stage.  There is nothing to stop a non-approved JSNA topic being re-

submitted for the next prioritisation deadline. 

3. Pre-production Pooling and Preparation of Approved JSNA Topics - Based on the operational 

estimates of the time and resource capacity to produce JSNA topic assessments described 

above, it is envisaged that no more than 2-3 JSNA topics will be in production at any one time. 

The depth and therefore the time taken to complete each JSNA topic will be pre-agreed with 

the topic nominees. The maximum length of time taken to complete a JSNA topic assessment 

Page 45



The JSNA Process 2017/18                                                            

 

Public Health Team | 5 

will be set at 6 months, and the work tailored accordingly. All pre-production but approved 

JSNA Topics will be placed in a pool, and ranked according to their prioritisation scoring. The 

pool will be regularly reviewed by the steering group, and topic nominees will be able to 

request a review of the score if they feel that circumstances have changed such that they feel 

a topic has become a higher priority for Lewisham. As soon as a JSNA topic is completed, the 

first JSNA topic in the pool will go into production. The health intelligence team may be able 

to undertake some preparatory data collection and analysis prior to production, subject to 

resources. 

4. Production – Based on the resources agreed at the approval, the nominee of the relevant 

JSNA topic will be asked to form a JSNA topic task and finish group which would include as a 

minimum a SRO (Senior Responsible Officer) from the JSNA Steering group and a member 

from the health intelligence team. The SRO is responsible for co-ordinating any strategic 

involvement from the relevant partners (e.g. data, service user surveys, interviews, policies 

etc.) and the health intelligence team member is responsible for collating and analysing the 

required data and evidence.  An initial scoping document is written with agreed milestones, 

clearly defined specifications and roles identified. This document would be signed off by the 

SRO before commencing the production. Any issues would be raised with the SRO and 

resolved before commencement. 

5. Completion – Once the JSNA topic is completed and approved by the SRO, it will be submitted 

to the JSNA steering group for approval. The JSNA steering group reviews it and either 

recommends it for sign off by the Health & Wellbeing Board, or provides feedback on any 

changes required by the task and finish group. Once the JSNA steering group is satisfied, it will 

recommend the JSNA topic for sign off by the Board. 

6. Dissemination – Once approved by the Health & Wellbeing Board, the Public Health 

intelligence team will publish the JSNA topic to the website. The final task of the task and 

finish group will be to advise the health intelligence team on the most appropriate 

communication channels and support it to disseminate web link to the completed JSNA topic. 

The Process for Refreshing JSNA Topics 
It will not be possible to routinely refresh every JSNA topic.  It is proposed that after a JSNA topic has 

been published for 3 years, the JSNA steering group reviews it and decides whether to refresh it or 

move it to an archive section of the website. The JSNA Steering group will need to consider the 

available resources and an SRO from the group would be allocated to oversee the refresh. After this 

point, the process would be same as for the new JSNA topic process discussed above. 

JSNA Catalogue: The JSNA catalogue will provide a comprehensive list of previous JSNAs and JSNA 

refreshes in the last 5 years, the new JSNAs and JSNA refreshes in the pipeline. The list will include the 

publication dates, due dates for refresh, contact details of the leads etc. The list will be reviewed every 

year. 

 
 

  

Page 46



The JSNA Process 2017/18                                                            

 

Public Health Team | 6 

 

Appendix A: JSNA Process 
 

  

Topics 
Selection

Prioritisation 
and Approval

Pre-production 
Pooling and 
Approved 

JSNA Topics

Production

Completion

Dissemination

New JSNA 
Process 

Tools 

Registration Module 

Topic Selection Surveys 

Prioritisation Matrix 

Gantt Charts x 2 
(Process & Product) 

Performance Dashboard 

JSNA Template 

P
age 47



The JSNA Process 2017/18                                                            

 

Public Health Team | 7 

Appendix B: JSNA Topic Suggestion Form 
 

This form is aimed at gathering requests for JSNA topics. This would enable the JSNA Steering Group 

to understand the nature of and rationale for the request, and would allow the group to score 

nominated topics against a prioritisation Matrix (to be developed). The JSNA steering group can 

contact the requestor if it needs any additional information. Users will be able to access, fill in and 

submit the form online. 

 

Questions 

1. What is your chosen topic of Interest? 

2. Does the topic relate to any local or national strategies/Priorities?  

(Please mention any links to the strategy document and kindly explain how the proposed strategy 

helps your strategy or influence commissioning decision) 

3. Do you have sufficient data and evidence that you can provide, and are there any known 

data/evidence gaps that will need to be addressed as part of the JSNA? 

4. Will your chosen topic help to reduce inequalities? If so please explain? 

5. Will your chosen topic help to achieve efficiencies in the local health and care 

economy? If so please explain? 

6. Will your chosen topic help in improving health and wellbeing outcomes in the 

borough? If so please explain? 

7. Does your topic require community engagement i.e surveys, focus groups, 

interviews? If so please describe what you think will be required, and indicate what 

support you can provide. 

8. What kind of resources and skill mix is required in your opinion and how much of 

that can your team contribute? 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

Page 48



The JSNA Process 2017/18                                                            

 

Public Health Team | 8 

Appendix C: JSNA Template 
 

A good JSNA should be able to provide answers to the following questions: 

 

What do we know?  

Sub-Section heading 

 

Facts and figures? 

What are the key inequalities?  

Targets and performance? 

National and local strategies? 

What works? 

Current activities and services? 

Local views? 

 

 

What is this telling us?  

What are the key gaps in knowledge and/or services? 

What is coming on the horizon? 

What should we be doing next? - JSNA Topic Action Plan 

 

Page 49



 
 
1.  Purpose 
 
1.1      This report presents the Health and Wellbeing Board with the current work  

     programme (included as Appendix A) for discussion and approval. 
  
  
2.  Recommendations 
 
2.1  Members of the Health and Wellbeing Board are invited to: 
 

• Review the current work programme and propose additional items to be 
included as appropriate. 

• Approve the formation of a Health and Wellbeing Strategy Review Group.  
• Approve the requirement for an additional Board meeting in the current 

municipal year, preferably in February 2018. 
 
 

3.  Strategic Context   
 
3.1  The activity of the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) is focussed on 

delivering the strategic vision for Lewisham as established in Shaping our 
Future – Lewisham’s Sustainable Community Strategy and in Lewisham’s 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 
3.2  The work of the Board directly contributes to Shaping our Future’s priority 

outcome that communities in Lewisham should be Healthy, active and 
enjoyable - where people can actively participate in maintaining and improving 
their health and wellbeing. 

 
3.3 There are a number of core duties defined in the Health and Social Care Act 

2012 which underpin the work of Health and Wellbeing Boards. These 
include: 
 To encourage the integration of health and social care commissioning and 

provision;  
 To undertake a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) to identify the 

health and wellbeing priorities of the local population;  
 To develop a joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy outlining how the board 

intends to achieve improvements to local health outcomes.  
 
 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

Report Title Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme 

Contributors Principal Officer, Policy, Service Design 

and Analysis 

Item No. 7 

Class Part 1  Date:  6 July 2017 

Page 50

Agenda Item 7



4.  Background 
 
4.1  The work programme is a key document for the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

It allows the Board to schedule activity, reports and presentations across the 
year. It also provides members of the public and wider stakeholders with a 
clear picture of the Board’s planned activity. 

 
4.2 The HWB has agreed to consider and approve the work programme at every 

meeting. In adding items to the work programme, the Board has agreed to 
specify the information and analysis required in the report, so that report 
authors are clear as to what is required.  

 
4.3 The Health and Wellbeing Board Agenda Planning Group convenes prior to 

each meeting of the Board with organisational representation from across the 
Board’s members. In addition to reviewing the work programme, the Agenda 
Planning Group also identify new issues or emerging topics that have arisen 
since the Board last met. These are included as draft agenda items for 
approval by the Chair (if required for the pending Board meeting), or added to 
the work programme if required for subsequent meetings. 

 
4.4   The HWB has previously agreed that the work programme will include regular 

progress updates on the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and standing items in 
relation to both the South East London Sustainability and Transformation Plan 
and also on the local transformation and integration activity taking place within 
the Whole System Model of Care (including Adult Integrated Care) 
Programme being delivered by Lewisham’s Health and Care Partners. 

 
 4.5 The HWB is also required to approve the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 

priorities and consider the findings and recommendations from any completed 
JSNA topics. These findings will inform the Board’s approach to achieving 
improvements in local health and wellbeing outcomes. 

 
 
5.  Work programme  
 
5.1 The work programme (see Appendix A), includes those items which the Board 

has agreed to consider over the course of the year. Board members are also 
requested to consider additional items to be included in the work programme 
as appropriate. 

 
5.2 The following items have been added to the work programme, or amended, 

since the last HWB meeting:  

 LGT Estates Plan / One Public Estate Update moved from July to 
November 2017. 

 Health and Wellbeing Strategy Refresh added to February 2018. 

 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (Revised) added to November 2017 
and February 2018. 

 Air Quality added to November 2017. 
 

Page 51



5.3 The Lewisham Health and Care Partners Estates Steering Group met on 31 
May 2017 and agreed that the update on estates should be deferred until the 
Board meeting in November 2017. This is to allow Lewisham and Greenwich 
NHS Trust sufficient time to receive formal feedback on their request for pre-
application planning advice. 

 
5.3 The original Health & Wellbeing Strategy (2013-2023) is underpinned by nine 

priority outcomes for Lewisham that are routinely monitored by the Board 
through the Performance Dashboard. In 2015 as part of a strategy ‘refresh’, 
the Board agreed to provide a greater strategic focus on three interdependent, 
priorities over the period 2015-2018. These are priorities where collective and 
concerted effort by the Board member organisations, in partnership with other 
stakeholders, could bring about significant population level improvements in 
Health and Wellbeing. These broader priorities are as follows: (i) to accelerate 
the integration of care; (ii) to shift the focus of action and resources to 
preventing ill health and promoting independence; and (iii) supporting our 
communities and families to become healthy and resilient.   

 
5.4 At the end of this ‘refresh’ period (i.e. 2018), the Board will be required to 

evaluate progress and identify the preferred way forward. This discussion will 
need to be informed by the original Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2013-
2023) alongside more recent contextual factors such as the Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan, Our Healthier South East London and local integration 
and transformation plans 

 
5.5 With this in mind it is recommended that the Board agree the formation of a 

Health and Wellbeing Strategy Review Group, with representation from 
member organisations. This group will review the original and ‘refreshed’ 
priorities and draft an approach for 2018-2023, subject to Board approval. It is 
anticipated that this group would convene with immediate effect and report 
back to the Board in February 2018. Any changes to the Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy would take effect at the start of the 2018-19 municipal year. 

 
5.6 The Board is also required to consider the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment 

(PNA). The first PNA was published in March 2015. There is a requirement 
under the National Health Service (Pharmaceutical Services and Local 
Pharmaceutical Services) Regulations 2013 to publish a revised assessment 
within three years of publication of the first assessment (i.e. by March 2018). 
Public Health are planning to bring a draft to the board in November 2017 
prior to a 90 day consultation. The final version will then be signed-off by the 
Board in February 2018. 

 
6. Schedule of meetings 
 
6.1 The Board is scheduled to meet three times per municipal year (April-Mar). In 

2018-19 there will be local elections taking place in May 2018. As an 
executive board of the Council, the HWB will be unable to meet during this 
period. This would delay the first meeting of the new municipal year until June 
2018 – a seven month interval between Board meetings. As such the Board is 
asked to approve an additional meeting for the current municipal year (2017-

Page 52



18), preferably scheduled for February 2018. Future meetings would then run 
as follows: November 2017, February 2018, June 2018, October 2018 and 
February 2019. 

 
6.2 The requirements upon the Board to make decisions, reach agreement or to 

be formally consulted does not always align itself with the three scheduled 
meetings per year. Therefore, some last minute amendments to the work 
programme and the scheduling of Board meetings may be required. 

 
6.3 Workshops had previously been scheduled for the intervening months to 

enable the Board to informally examine issues in more depth or to provide 
development opportunities for the Board. Themes for potential workshops to 
the end of the municipal year are currently being explored. Further information 
will be provided to the Board in due course. 

 
7.        Financial implications 
 
7.1     There are no specific financial implications arising from this report or its 

recommendations. 
 
8.  Legal implications 
 
8.1 Members of the Board are reminded of their responsibilities to carry out 

statutory functions of the Health and Wellbeing Board under the Health and 
Social Care Act 2012. Activities of the Board include, but may not be limited to 
the following: 

 To encourage persons who arrange for the provision of any health or 
social services in the area to work in an integrated manner, for the purpose 
of advancing the health and wellbeing of the area. 

 To provide such advice, assistance or other support as its thinks 
appropriate for the purpose of encouraging the making of arrangements 
under Section 75 NHS Act 2006 in connection with the provision of such 
services. 

 To encourage persons who arrange for the provision of health related 
services in its area to work closely with the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

 To prepare Joint Strategic Needs Assessments (as set out in Section 116 
Local Government Public Involvement in Health Act 2007). 

 To give opinion to the Council on whether the Council is discharging its 
duty to have regard to any JSNA and any joint Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy prepared in the exercise of its functions. 

 To exercise any Council function which the Council delegates to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board, save that it may not exercise the Council’s functions 
under Section 244 NHS Act 2006. 

 
8.2  The Equality Act 2010 (the Act) introduced a new public sector equality duty 

(the equality duty or the duty). It covers the following nine protected 
characteristics: age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and sexual 
orientation. 

 

Page 53



8.3  In summary, the Council must, in the exercise of its functions, have due 
regard to the need to: 

 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other 
conduct prohibited by the Act. 

 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic 
and those who do not. 

 
8.4  The duty continues to be a “have regard duty”, and the weight to be attached 

to it is a matter for the Mayor, bearing in mind the issues of relevance and 
proportionality. It is not an absolute requirement to eliminate unlawful 
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity or foster good relations. 

 
8.5  The Equality and Human Rights Commission has recently issued Technical 

Guidance on the Public Sector Equality Duty and statutory guidance entitled 
“Equality Act 2010 Services, Public Functions & Associations Statutory Code 
of Practice”. The Council must have regard to the statutory code in so far as it 
relates to the duty and attention is drawn to Chapter 11 which deals 
particularly with the equality duty. The Technical Guidance also covers what 
public authorities should do to meet the duty. This includes steps that are 
legally required, as well as recommended actions. The guidance does not 
have statutory force but nonetheless regard should be had to it, as failure to 
do so without compelling reason would be of evidential value. The statutory 
code and the technical guidance can be found at: 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/legal-and-policy/equalityact/equality-act-
codes-of-practice-and-technical-guidance/ 

 
8.6  The Equality and Human Rights Commission (EHRC) has previously issued 

five guides for public authorities in England giving advice on the equality duty: 
 

1. The essential guide to the public sector equality duty 
2. Meeting the equality duty in policy and decision-making 
3. Engagement and the equality duty 
4. Equality objectives and the equality duty 
5. Equality information and the equality duty 

 
8.7  The essential guide provides an overview of the equality duty requirements 

including the general equality duty, the specific duties and who they apply to. 
It covers what public authorities should do to meet the duty, including steps 
that are legally required, as well as recommended actions. The other four 
documents provide more detailed guidance on key areas and advice on good 
practice. Further information and resources are available at: 
http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/advice-and-guidance/publicsector-
equality-duty/guidance-on-the-equality-duty/ 

 
 
9.  Equalities implications 
 

Page 54



9.1  There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report or its 
recommendations. 

 
 
 
10. Crime and disorder implications 
 
10.1  There are no specific crime and disorder implications arising from this report 

or its recommendations. 
 
11.  Environmental implications 
 
11.1  There are no specific environmental implications arising from this report or its 

recommendations. 
 

If there are any queries on this report please contact Stewart Snellgrove, 
Principal Officer, Policy, Service Design and Analysis, London Borough of 
Lewisham on: 020 8314 9308  or by e-mail at 
stewart.snellgrove@lewisham.gov.uk 

 
 
 

Page 55

mailto:stewart.snellgrove@lewisham.gov.uk


Health and Wellbeing Board – Work Programme 2017 
 

 

6 July 2017 
 

Item 
 

Report Title Information / 
Agreement 

Lead 
Organisation(s) 

Presented By 

1 Whole System Model of Care: Governance and 
Partnership Arrangements for Community Based 
Care 
 

Agreement CCG/LBL Martin Wilkinson and Sarah Wainer 

2 South East London Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan: Update 
 

Information CCG  Martin Wilkinson 

3 Better Care Fund Planning – 2016/17 Progress 
Report 
 

Agreement CCG/LBL Sarah Wainer  

4 Revising the JSNA Process in Lewisham Discussion LBL Danny Ruta 

5 Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme 

 

Agreement LBL Salena Mulhere 

 

  

P
age 56



 

2 November 2017 
 

Item 
 

Report Title Information / 
Agreement 

Lead 
Organisation(s) 

Presented By 

1 South East London Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan: Update 
 

Information CCG Martin Wilkinson 

2 Whole System Model of Care  
 

TBC CCG/LBL Sarah Wainer 

3 Draft LGT Estates Plan / OPE 
 

Agreement LBL Tim Higginson and/or Keith Howard 

4 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment – Revised 
Assessment 
 

Agreement LBL Danny Ruta 

5 Lewisham Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) – 
Annual Report 
 

Agreement LBL Nicky Pace 

6 Lewisham Safeguarding Adults Board (LSAB) – 
Annual Report 
 

Agreement LBL Michael Preston-Shoot 

7 Annual Public Health Report 
 

Agreement LBL Danny Ruta 

8 Performance Dashboard Update – Exceptions 
Reporting 

Agreement LBL Siva Chandrasekaran 

9 Healthwatch Annual Report: Executive Summary Discussion Healthwatch Folake Segun 

10 Air Quality TBC LBL Geeta Subramaniam-Mooney / Katie 
Cole 

11 Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme Agreement LBL Salena Mulhere 

12 Adult Social Care Local Account 2017-18 Information LBL  

   

 

 

P
age 57



 

 

 

February 2018 (TBC) 
 

Item 
 

Report Title Information / 
Agreement 

Lead 
Organisation(s) 

Presented By 

1 South East London Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan: Update 
 

Information CCG Martin Wilkinson 

2 Whole System Model of Care  
 

TBC CCG/LBL Sarah Wainer 

3 Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment – Revised 
Assessment 
 

Agreement LBL Danny Ruta 

4 Health and Wellbeing Strategy Refresh Agreement LBL/CCG Salena Mulhere 

5 Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme Agreement LBL Salena Mulhere 

 

P
age 58


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of last meeting and matters arising
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Whole System Model of Care - Governance and Partnership Arrangements for CBC
	Item 3a - Whole System Model of Care - Governance and Partnership Arrangements for CBC - 060717

	4 South East London Sustainability and Transformation Plan - Update
	Item 4a - South East London Sustainability and Transformation Plan Update

	5 Better Care Fund Planning - 2016/17 Progress Report
	6 Revising the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) Process in Lewisham
	Item 6a - Revising the Lewisham JSNA Process - 060717

	7 Health and Wellbeing Board Work Programme
	Item 7a - Appendix A - HWB Work Programme - 060717


